

ADVISORY LAND USE PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

Minutes for the Advisory Land Use Planning Commission of the Village of Pemberton held Monday, April 27, 2020 at 5:30 pm by ZOOM Webinar.

IN ATTENDANCE: REGRETS:	Kevin Clark Allison Twiss Kirsten McLeod Mark Barsevskis Kristina Salin Richard Nott
REGREIS.	Richard Noti
STAFF IN ATTENDENCE:	Lisa Pedrini, Manager of Development Services Cameron Chalmers, Contract Planner Elysia Harvey, Legislative Assisant (Meeting Coordinator) Gwendolyn Kennedy, Building & Planning Clerk (minutes)
PUBLIC IN ATTENDENCE:	4

1. ORIENTATION

2. CALL TO ORDER

At 5:33 p.m. the meeting was called to order.

3. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

Moved/Seconded THAT Kevin Clark be appointed Chair of the Advisory Land Use Planning Commission. CARRIED

Kevin Clark took over as Chair of the meeting.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved/Seconded THAT the agenda be approved as circulated. CARRIED

5. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

Village of Pemberton ADVISORY LAND USE PLANNING COMMISSION April 27, 2020 Page 2 of 3 Moved/Seconded THAT the minutes of Advisory Land Use Planning Commission meeting held October 28, 2019 be adopted as circulated. CARRIED

6. ZONING BYLAW TEXT AMENDMENT – RESIDENTIAL TOWNHOUSE AMENITY 1 (RTA-1) AMENDMENT

Cameron Chalmers, Village Contract Planner, summarized the application for a zoning bylaw text amendment that would permit duplex building forms within Elevate at Sunstone and any future multi-family buildings in the RTA-1 zone.

The RTA-1 zone was created specifically to implement the Sunstone project and permits the development of single-detached small lots and multi-family townhouse development, which, under Zoning Bylaw No. 832, 2018, is defined as buildings of three or more dwelling units. The application would enable the construction of duplex units within multi-family complexes, but would not permit the subdivision of land to create duplex lots. No changes are proposed to other existing regulations applicable to this zone.

Should the application succeed, the applicant would submit a revised development permit application that would propose approximately 45 units, primarily in the form of duplex units. Mr. Chalmers referred Commission members to the illustrative concepts presented in Appendix C of the report.

Staff has reviewed the application and noted that the slightly reduced density and gentler building forms proposed conform with the character of the existing Sunstone project and with the Hillside Development Guidelines.

Commission members requested clarification on market demand for the duplex form, the potential impact on affordability, conformity with the overall community plan, lot coverage and spacing between buildings. The question of whether this zone would be used elsewhere in the community was raised.

Cam McIvor, representing the applicant Sunstone Ridge Developments Ltd., provided additional information on the zoning amendment request, explaining that uptake of Elevate townhouse units has been limited due to the high cost of construction, and that the interior units of the four and sixplex buildings have not been selling. A change to duplex units would eliminate the less saleable middle units and would reduce up-front construction costs for each building, allowing for a more affordable, phased approach to the development.

Mr. McIvor noted that the impact on density and lot coverage for the project is minor and would result in a reduction from 19 units per hectare to 16.4 units per hectare. Furthermore, the duplex form will allow for a substantial increase in parking, up to four stalls per unit.

Mr. McIvor pointed out that while the duplex form will necessarily result in a higher price per unit, Elevate was intended to satisfy the middle and upper sectors of the market.

Commission members spoke in favour of the text amendment, but noted that as the change to duplex units would alter the landscaping, the new landscape plan should be reviewed.

Village of Pemberton ADVISORY LAND USE PLANNING COMMISSION April 27, 2020 Page **3** of **3**

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Advisory Land Use Commission recommends that Council proceed with the amendment proposed to the Residential Townhouse Amenity 1, Sunstone (RTA-1) Zone to incorporate duplex buildings as permitted uses in multi-family developments, subject to consideration of the revised landscape plan.

CARRIED

7. NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be scheduled for the fourth Monday of the month as needed.

8. ADJOURNMENT

At 6:42 p.m. the meeting was adjourned.

Kevin Clark, Chair